By-Laws

OF

THE PARK AT TROWBRIDGE

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I NAME, MEMBERSHIP, APPLICABILITY, AND DEFINITIONS

Section 1. Name: The name of the Association shall be The Park at Trowbridge Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Association").

Section 2. <u>Membership:</u> The Association shall have one class of membership, as is more fully set forth in that Declaration of Protective Covenants for The Park at TrowbridgeS/D (such Declaration as amended, renewed, or extended from time to time, is hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Declaration"), the terms of which pertaining to membership are specifically incorporated by reference herein.

Section 3. <u>Definitions:</u> The words used in these By-Laws shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Declaration unless the context shall prohibit.

ARTICLE II ASSOCIATION: MEETINGS, QUORUM, VOTING, PROXIES

Section 1. Place of Meetings: Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the members as may be designated by the Board of Directors, either in the Community or as convenient thereto as possible and practical.

Section 2. First Meeting and Annual Meeting: An annual or special meeting shall be held within one (1) year from the date the Declaration is recorded. Annual meetings shall be set by the Board so as to occur no later than sixty (60) days after the close of the Association's fiscal year. If the day for the annual meeting of the members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday (excluding Saturday and Sunday.)

Section 3. Special Meetings: The President may call special meetings. In addition, it shall be the duty of the President to call a special meeting of the Association if so directed by resolution of a Majority of the Board of Directors or upon a petition signed by Owners holding at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the total Association vote. The notice of any special meeting shall state the date, time, and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice.

Section 4. Notice of Meetings: It shall be the duty of the Secretary to mail or to cause to be delivered to the Owner of record of each Lot a notice of each annual or special meeting of the Association stating the purpose of the special meeting as well as the time and place where it is to be held. If an Owner wishes notice to be given at an address other than his or her Lot, he or she shall have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary such other address. The mailing or delivery of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice. Notices shall be served not less than ten (10) nor more thirty (30) days before a meeting.

Section 5. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>: Waiver of notice of a meting of the members shall be deemed the equivalent of proper notice. Any member may, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the members, either before or after such meeting. Attendance at a meeting by a member, whether in person or by proxy, shall be deemed waiver by such member of notice of the time, date, and place thereof unless such member specifically objects to lack of proper notice at the time the meeting is called to order.

Section 6. Adjournment of Meetings: If any meetings of the Association cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a Majority of the members who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time the original meeting was called. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further notice.

Section 7. <u>Voting:</u> The voting rights of the members shall be as set forth in the Declaration, and such voting rights are specifically incorporated herein.

Section 8. Proxies: At all meetings of members, each member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing, dated, and filed with the Secretary before the appointed time of each meeting. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the member of his or her Lot or upon receipt of notice by the Secretary of the death or judicially declared incompetence of a member, of written revocation, upon the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date of the proxy.

Section 9. Quorum: The presence, in person or by proxy, of Owners holding at least fifty percent (50%) of the total eligible Association vote shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association. The members present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough members to leave less than a quorum.

ARTICLE III BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Number, Powers, Meetings

A. Composition and Selection

Section 1. Governing Body; Composition: The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors. Except as provided in Section 2 of this Article, the directors must reside in the Community and shall be members or spouses of such members; provided, however, no person and his or her spouse may serve on the Board at the same time.

Section 2. <u>Directors Appointed by Declarant:</u> Declarant shall have the right to appoint or remove any member or members of the Board of Directors or any officer or officers of the Association until such time as the first of the following events shall occur:

- (a) the expiration of five (5) years after the date of the recording of the Declaration;
- (b) the date on which twenty-four (24) lots have been conveyed to persons other than the Declarant or a builder purchasing for the purpose of construction thereon and resale; or
- the surrender by Declarant in writing of the authority to appoint and remove directors and officers of the Association. Each owner, by acceptance of a deed to or other conveyance of a lot, vests in Declarant such authority to appoint and remove directors and officers of the Association. The directors selected by the Declarant need not be the owners or residents in the Community. The names of the initial directors selected by the Declarant are set forth in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

Section 3. Number of Directors: The Board shall consist of five (5) members.

Section 4. Nomination of Directors: Elected directors shall be nominated from the floor and may also be nominated by a Nominating Committee if such a committee is established by the Board. All candidates shall have a reasonable opportunity to communicate their qualifications to the members and to solicit votes.

Section 5. Election and Term of Office: Not later than thirty (30) days after termination of the Declarant's right to appoint directors and officers as described in Section 2 of this Article, the Association shall call a meeting to be held at which Owners shall elect five (5) directors. The term of three (3) directors shall expire two (2) years after the first annual meeting following termination of the Declarant's right to appoint directors, and the term of two (2) directors shall expire one (1) year after such annual meeting. At the expiration of the first term of office of each member of the initial Board of Directors, a successor shall be elected to serve for a term of two (2) years. The members of the Board of Directors shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected by the Association.

At each annual meeting of the membership thereafter, directors shall be elected to succeed those directors whose terms are expiring. All eligible members of the Association shall vote on all directors to be elected, and the candidate(s) receiving the most votes shall be elected.

Section 6. Removal of Directors: At any regular or special meeting of the Association duly called, any one or more of the members of the Board of Directors may be removed, with or without cause, by a Majority of the total Association vote, and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. A director whose removal has been proposed by the Owners shall be given at least ten (10 days notice of the calling of the meeting and the purpose thereof and shall be

given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. Additionally, any director who has three (3) consecutive unexcused absences from Board meetings or who is delinquent in the payment of an assessment for more than twenty (20) days may be removed by a Majority vote of the directors at a meeting, a quorum being present. This Section shall not apply to directors appointed by Declarant.

Section 7. <u>Vacancies</u>: Vacancies in the Board of Directors caused by any reason, excluding the removal of a director by vote of the Association, shall be filled by a vote of the Majority of the remaining directors, even though less than a quorum, at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each director so selected shall serve the unexpired portion of the term of his predecessor.

B. Meetings

Section 8. <u>Organization Meetings:</u> The first meeting of the members of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the membership shall be held within ten (10) days thereafter at such time and place as shall be fixed by the Board.

Section 9. Regular Meetings: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a Majority of the directors, but at least four (4) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year with at least one (1) per quarter. Notice of the regular schedule shall constitute sufficient notice of such meetings.

Section 10. Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when requested by the President, vice President, or by any two (2) directors. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and the nature of any special business to be considered. The notice shall be given to each director by one of the following methods:

- (a) by personal delivery;
- (b) by written notice by first class mail, postage prepaid;
- by telephone communication, either directly to the director or to a person at the director's home or office who would reasonably be expected to communicate such notice promptly to the director; or
- d) by telegram, charges prepaid. All such notices shall be given or sent to the director's address or telephone number as shown on the records of the Association. Notices sent by first class mail shall be deposited into a United States mailbox at least four (4) days before the time set for the meeting. Notices given by personal delivery, telephone, or telegraph company shall be given at least forty-eight (48) hours before the timeset for the meeting.

Section 11. Waiver of Notice: The transactions of any meeting of the Board of Directors, however called and noticed or wherever held, shall be as valid as though taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if:

- (a) a quorum is present, and
- (b) either before or after the meeting, each of the directors not present signs a written waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. Notice of a meeting shall also be deemed given to any director who attends the meeting without protesting before or at its commencement about the lack of adequate notice.

Section 12. Q uorum of B oard of D irectors: At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a majority of the directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board of Directors. A meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business, notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for that meeting. If any meeting cannot be held because a quorum is not present, a majority of the directors who are present at such meeting may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than five (5) nor more than thirty (30) days from the time that the original meeting was called. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called may be transacted without further notice.

Section 13. <u>Compensation:</u> No Director shall receive any compensation from the Association for acting as such unless approved by a majority of the owners.

Section 14. Open Meetings: All meetings of the Board shall be open to all members, but members other than directors may not participate in any discussion or deliberation unless expressly so authorized by the Board.

Section 15. Executive Session: The Board may adjourn a meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss and vote upon personnel matters, litigation in which the Association is or may become involved, and orders of business of a similar nature. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open session.

Section 16. Action Without a Formal Meeting: Any action to be taken at a meeting of the directors or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the directors.

Section 17. <u>Telephonic Participation:</u> One or more directors may participate in and vote during any regular or special meeting of the Board by telephone conference call or similar communication equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time, and those directors so participating shall be present at such meeting. Any such meeting at which a quorum participates shall constitute a regular meeting of the Board.

C. Powers and Duties

Section 18. Powers: The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the affairs of the Association and shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the Association's affairs and, as provided by law, may do all acts and things as are not by the Declaration, Articles, or these By-Laws directed to be done and exercised exclusively by the members. In addition to the duties imposed by these By-Laws or by any resolution of the Association that may hereafter be adopted, the Board of Directors shall have the power to and be responsible for the following in way of explanation but not limitation:

- (a) Preparation and adoption of an annual budget in which there shall be established the contribution of each owner to the common expenses;
- (b) making assessments to defray the common expenses, establishing the means and methods of collecting such assessments, and establishing the period of the installment payments of the annual assessment;
- (c) providing for the operation, care, upkeep, and maintenance of all areas which are the maintenance responsibility of the Association;
- (d) designating, hiring, and dismissing the personnel necessary for the operation of the Association and where appropriate providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies, and materials to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties;

- (e) collecting the assessments, depositing the proceeds thereof in a bank depository which it shall approve, and using the proceeds to administer the Association:
- making and amending use restrictions and rules and regulations; (f)
- opening of bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designating the (g) signatories required;
- enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declaration, these By-Laws, (h) and the rules and regulations adopted by it, and bringing any proceedings which may be instituted on behalf of or against the owners concerning the
- obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities as provided in the Declaration, and paying the premium cost thereof; (i)
- paying the cost of all services rendered to the Association or its members (i) which are not directly chargeable to owners;
- (k) keeping books with detailed accounts of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Association and its administration, and specifying the maintenance and repair expenses and any other expenses incurred; and
- contracting with any person for the performance of various duties and functions. The Board shall have the power to enter into common management agreements with trusts, condominiums, or other associations. Any and all functions of the Association shall be fully transferable by the (1)Board, in whole or in part, to any other entity.

Section 19. <u>Management Agent:</u> The Board of Directors may employ for the Association a professional management agent or agents at a compensation established by the Board of Directors to perform such duties and services as the Board of Directors shall authorize. The Declarant or an affiliate of the Declarant may be employed as managing agent or manager. The term of any management agreement shall not exceed one (1) year and shall be subject to termination by either party, without cause or penalty, upon ninety (90) days written notice.

Section 20. <u>Borrowing:</u> The Board of Directors shall have the power to borrow money for any lawful purpose including, without limitation, repair or restoration of the common property and facilities without the approval of the member of the Association provided; however, the Board shall obtain membership approval in the same manner as for special assessments in the event the proposed than the proposed that the proposed the same manner as for special assessments in the event that the proposed than the proposed t borrowing is for the purpose of modifying, improving, or adding amenities, or the total amount of such borrowing exceeds or would exceed ten thousand (\$10,000.00) dollars outstanding debt at any one time.

Section 21. Fining Procedure: The Board shall not impose a fine (a late charge shall not constitute a fine) unless and until the following procedure is followed:

- Notice: Written notice shall be served upon the violator specifying: (a)
 - the nature of the violation and the fine imposed;
 - 2. that the violator may within ten (10) days from the date of .
 - the notice, request a hearing regarding the fine imposed; the name, address, and telephone number of a person to 3. contact to challenge the fine;
 - that any statements, evidence, and witnesses may be produced by the violator at the hearing; and
 - that all rights to have the fine reconsidered are waived if a hearing is not requested within ten (10) days of the date of the notice.
- <u>Hearing:</u> If a hearing is requested, it shall be held before the Board in executive session, and the violator shall be given a reasonable opportunity (b) to be heard. The minutes of the meeting shall contain a written statement of the results of the hearing.

ARTICLE IV **OFFICERS**

Section 1. Officers: The officers of the Association shall be a president, vice president, secretary, and treasurer. Any two (2) or more offices may be held by the same person, excepting the offices of president and secretary. The president and treasurer shall be elected from among the members of the Board of Directors.

- Section 2. Election, Term of Office, and Vacancies: Except during the period in which the Declarant has the right to appoint the officers of the Association under Article III, Section 2 of these By-Laws, the officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the members. A vacancy in any office arising because of death, resignation, removal, or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.
- Section 3. Removal: Any officer may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever, in its judgment, the best interests of the Association will be served thereby.
- Section 4. <u>President:</u> The president shall be the chief executive officer of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors. The president shall have all the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of the president of a corporation organized under the georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code.
- Section 5. <u>Vice President:</u> The vice president shall act in the president's absence and shall have all powers, duties, and responsibilities provided for the president when so acting.
- Section 6. Secretary: The secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Association and of the Board of Directors and shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct and shall, in general, perform all duties incident to the office of the secretary of a corporation organized in accordance with Georgia law.
- Section 7. Treasurer: The treasurer shall have the responsibility for the Association's funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, for preparing all required financial statements and tax returns, and for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Association or the managing a gent in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.
- Section 8. Resignation: Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President, or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

ARTICLE V COMMITTEES

Committees to perform such tasks and to serve for such periods as may be designated by the Board are hereby authorized. Each committee shall be composed and shall operate in accordance with the terms of the resolution of the Board of Directors designating the committee or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI MISCELLANEOUS

- **Section 1.** Fiscal Year: The fiscal year of the Association shall be determined by resolution of the Board. In the absence of such a resolution, the fiscal year shall be the calendar year.
- Section 2. <u>Parliamentary Rules:</u> Roberts Rules of Order (current edition) shall govern the conduct of all Association proceedings when not in conflict with Georgia law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, these By-Laws, or a ruling made by the person presiding over the proceedings.
- Section 3. <u>Conflicts:</u> If there are conflicts or inconsistencies between the provisions of Georgia law, the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and these By-Laws, the provisions of Georgia law, the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, and the By-Laws (in that order) shall prevail.
- **Section 4.** <u>Amendment:</u> The provisions of the Declaration applicable to a mendment of that instrument shall apply to any amendment to these By-Laws provided, however, that VA and HUD shall have the right to veto amendments to these By-Laws for a slong as the Declarant has the right to appoint directors and officers of the Association under Article III, Section 2 of these By-Laws.



BYLAWS THE PARK AT TROWBRIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE ONE

The affairs of the corporation shall be controlled and administered by a Board of Directors ("the directors") which shall be composed of three members. Each director will serve until operation is transferred to the homeowners and open elections held, but may resign his appointment at any time and may be removed, with or without cause, by a two-thirds vote of the entire Board of Directors. Upon the death, removal, resignation or incapacity of any members of the board of directors, a majority of the then remaining directors shall elect his successor. A director shall be considered incapacitated if for any reason he shall be unable to carry on the duties of his office and the remaining directors shall have declared him incapable of service by two-thirds vote of the directors voting.

The directors shall meet annually during the month of January at a place, time and date which shall be fixed by the President and shall hold such other meetings as may be necessary from time to time upon call of the President which call shall specify place, time, date and purpose of the meeting.

ARTICLE TWO

The officers of the corporation shall consist of a President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other officers as may be elected by the directors. Only directors shall serve as officers of the corporation. Any two offices may be held by the same person, except the office of President and Secretary.

ARTICLE THREE

The Treasurer shall at all times maintain records evidencing the property owned by the corporation and its disbursements, and present the same to the annual meeting of the Directors, provided however, that the records shall always be open for inspection by any directors.

ARTICLE FOUR

A quorum for the transaction of any business shall be a majority of the directors then in office.

ARTICLE FIVE

The Directors shall serve without compensation.

ARTICLE SIX

The Board of Directors shall have the power to alter, amend or repeal the bylaws or adopt new bylaws, provided that the bylaws at no time shall contain any provision inconsistent with law or the Articles of Incorporation.

2002 OPERATING BUDGET PARK AT TROWBRIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Projected Disbursements

Landscape maintenance and annuals	4,000.00
Utilities	3,300.00
Insurance	936.00
Property Taxes	30.00
Miscellaneous	415.00
	8,681.00

Projected Receipts

\$ 600 x 16 = 9,600.00

Originally projected 20 but one house remains unoccupied and three houses sold in 2002 and therefore paid partial year's dues

Park at Trowbridge Homeowners Association

	2000	2001	2002 as of 6/13	2002 Projected
Income				
Association Dues				
Misc. Income				
Loan from Province	8,764.01	11,981.76	3,859.84	
Expense				
Bank Service Charges				
Contributions/Donations				
Filing Fees	15.00	15.00	15.00	15.00
Garbage Service			10.00	13.00
Insurance		910.00	936.00	936.00
Landscape Services	5,209.61	7,867.35	1,455.00	4,000.00
Licenses & Permits			.,	4,000.00
Miscellaneous Expenses	· ·	558.14	196.96	400.00
Postage & Delivery				700.00
Repairs - Building & Property	its			
Repay Loan to Province				8,851.82
Supplies - Office				0,001.02
Taxes - Property	24.86	26.87	-	30.00
Telephone				00.00
Utilities				
Electric	1,302.54	1,318.40	185.04	1,300.00
Water	2,212.00	1,286.00	1,071.84	2,000.00
Total Expenses	8,764.01	11,981.76	3,859.84	17,532.82
Total Income	8,764.01	11,981.76	3,859.84	17,532.82
Excess (Deficient) Funds	-	-	-1000.01	. 1,002.02

Secretary of State

Corporations Division 315 West Tower #2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr. Atlanta, Georgia 30334-1530 CONTROL NUMBER: K926800 EFFECTIVE DATE: 06/29/1999

COUNTY : COBB REFERENCE : 0045

PRINT DATE : 06/29/1999

FORM NUMBER : 311

DAVID B. SWALES 4799 OLDE TOWNE PARKWAY MARIETTA, GA 30068

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

I, Cathy Cox, the Secretary of State and the Corporations Commissioner of the State of Georgia, do hereby certify under the seal of my office that

THE PARK AT TROWBRIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
A DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION

has been duly incorporated under the laws of the State of Georgia on the effective date stated above by the filing of articles of incorporation in the Office of the Secretary of State and by the paying of fees as provided by Title 14 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the City of Atlanta and the State of Georgia on the date set forth above.



Cathy Cox Secretary of State

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF

THE PARK AT TROWBRIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

- ARTICLE 1. The name of the corporation is The Park at Trowbridge Homeowners Association, Inc. ("Corporation" or "Association"
- ARTICLE 2. The corporation is organized pursuant to the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code.
- ARTICLE 3. The street address of the initial registered office of the corporation is <u>4799 OLDE TOWNE PARKWAY</u>. <u>SUITE 200, MARIETTA, COBB COUNTY, GEORGIA 30068</u>, and the registered agent of the corporation at such address is <u>DAVID B. SWALES</u>.
- ARTICLE 4. The name and address of each incorporator is:

DAVID B. SWALES 5120 Post Oak Tritt Road Roswell, Georgia 30075

- ARTICLE 5. The Corporation shall be a membership corporation without certificates or shares of stock. Each Owner of a Lot (as such terms are defined in the Declaration of Protective Covenants for The Park at Trowbridge [Declaration"]) in the Development (as defined at Article 8, Section a.2 herein) is a member and shall be entitled to vote as set forth in the Declaration.
- ARTICLE 6. The mailing address of the initial principal office of the Corporation is 4799 Olde Towne Parkway, Suite 200, Marietta, Georgia 30068.
- ARTICLE 7. The Corporation shall have perpetual duration.
- ARTICLE 8. The Corporation does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit, direct or indirect, to its members.
 - (a) In way of explanation and not of limitation, the purposes for which it is formed are:
 - (1) to be and constitute the Association to which reference is made in the Declaration of Protective Covenants for The Park at Trowbridge, establishing a plan of development recorded in the office of the Clerk of the Superior Court of Fulton County, Georgia to perform all obligations and duties of the Association and to exercise all rights and powers of the Association as specified therein, in the By-Laws of The Park at Trowbridge Homeowners Association, Inc. ("By-Laws"), and as provided by law; and
 - (2) to provide an entity for the furtherance of the interests of the owners of property subject to the Declaration (such property is hereinafter referred to as the "Development").



.1.

- (b) In furtherance of its purposes, the Corporation shall have the following powers, which, unless indicated otherwise by the Declaration or By-Laws, may be exercised by its Board of Directors:
 - (1) all of the powers conferred upon nonprofit corporations by common law and the statutes of the State of Georgia in effect from time to time;
 - (2) all of the powers necessary or desirable to perform the obligations and duties and to exercise the rights and powers set out in these Articles, the By-Laws, or the Declaration, including, without limitation, the following:
 - (i) to fix and to collect assessments or other charges to be levied;
 - (ii) to manage, control, operate, maintain, repair, and improve property subjected to the Declaration or any other property for which the Corporation by rule, regulation, Declaration, or contract has a right or duty to provide such services;
 - (iii) to enforce covenants, conditions, or restrictions affecting any property to the extent the Association may be authorized to do so under the Declaration or By-laws:
 - (iv) to engage in activities which will actively foster, promote, and advance the common interests of all owners within the Development;
 - (v) to buy or otherwise acquire, sell, or otherwise dispose of, mortgage, or otherwise encumber, exchange, lease, hold, use, operate, and otherwise deal in and with real, personal, and mixed property of all kinds and any right or interest therein for any purpose of the Corporation;
 - (vi) to borrow money for any purpose as may be limited in the By-Laws;
 - (vii) to enter into, make, perform, or enforce contracts of every kind and description, and to do all other acts necessary, appropriate, or advisable in carrying out any purpose of the Association, with or in association with any other association, corporation, or other entity or agency, public or private;
 - (viii) to act as agent, trustee, or other representative of other corporations, firms, or individuals, and as such to advance the business or ownership interests in such corporations, firms, or individuals;
 - (ix) to adopt, alter, and amend or repeal such By-Laws as may be necessary or desirable for the proper management of the affairs of the Association; provided, however, such By-Laws may not be inconsistent with or contrary to any provisions of the Declaration; and
 - (x) to provide any and all supplemental services as may be necessary or proper.
 - (xi) The foregoing enumeration of powers shall not limit or restrict in any manner the exercise of other and further rights and powers which may now or hereafter be allowed or permitted by law; and the powers specified in each of the paragraphs of this Article 8 are independent powers not to be restricted by reference to or inference from the terms of any other paragraph or provision of this Article 8.
- TICLE 9. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be conducted, managed, and controlled by a board of directors. The Board shall consist of three (3) members. The names and addresses of the initial Board of Directors are as follows:

DAVID B. SWALES 4799 Olde Towne Parkway Suite 200 Marietta, Georgia 30068

BARBARA BIXBY 1495 Mosswood Lane Smyrna, GA 30080

MELBA A.BLACKWOOD 1300 Pembridge Way Kennesaw, GA 30152

The method of election, term of office, removal, and filling of vacancies shall be as set forth in the By-Laws. The Board may delegate such operating authority to such companies, individuals, or committees as it, in its discretion, may determine.

- ARTICLE 10. Directors shall have no personal liability to the Corporation or its members for monetary damages for breach of the duty of care or other duty as a director except as otherwise provided in the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code.
- ARTICLE 11. The Corporation may be dissolved only upon a vote of the members as provided in the Declaration, By-Laws, and by the laws of the State of Georgia.
- ARTICLE 12. These Articles may be amended only by a vote of the members as provided by the Georgia Nonprofit Corporation Code, provided that no amendment shall be in conflict with the Declaration, and provided further that no amendment shall be effective to impair or dilute any rights of members that are governed by such Declaration.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned incorporator has executed these Articles of Incorporation.

DAVID B. SWALES, AS PRESIDENT of PROVINCE PROPERTIES, INC.

INCORPORATOR

4799 Olde Towne Parkway Suite 200 Marietta, Georgia 30068 (770) 509-7009

SECRETARY OF STATE

JUN 29 | 444 PM '99

B S F(())